6

Assessor's Parcel Number:	
Recording Requested By:	
Name: TAHOE DOUGLAS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT	L
Address: P.O. Box 919	
City/State/Zip ZEPHYR COVE, NV 89448	_

Doc Number: **0832786** 

10/29/2013 04:25 PM

OFFICIAL RECORDS

Requested By TAHOE DOUGLAS FIRST PROTECTION DIST

DOUGLAS COUNTY RECORDERS Karen Ellison - Recorder

Page: 1 Of 46 Fee: \$ 0.00

Bk: 1013 Pg: 5678

Real Property Transfer Tax:

LOCAL 2441 INTERNATIONAL ASSOC. OF FIREFIGHTE TAHOE DOUGHEST POCUMENT) COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT JULY 1, 2013 thru JUNE 30, 2014

This page added to provide additional information required by NRS 111.312 Sections 1-2. (Additional recording fee applies)

This cover page must be typed or legibly hand printed.



BK : 10 13 PG : 5679 10/29/20 13





# Local 2441 International Association of Firefighters Tahoe Douglas

Collective Bargaining Agreement July 1, 2013 thru June 30, 2014





#### **PREAMBLE**

This Collective Bargaining Agreement (Agreement)) is entered into by and between the Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District, hereinafter referred to as the EMPLOYER, and the Tahoe Douglas Firefighters, Local 2441, hereinafter referred to as the UNION.

It is the purpose of the Agreement to achieve and maintain harmonious relations between the EMPLOYER and the UNION, to provide for equitable and peaceful adjustment of differences which may arise and to establish proper standards, wages, hours and other conditions of employment.

The effective date of this contract is July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014.

Signed:

Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District / Tahoe Douglas Firefighter Association Local 2441

Witnessed the 29th day of Oct 2013

By Sen Shart By Mill May

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Preamble	2
DIVISION I-LEGAL	4
Article 1-Recognition	4
Article 2-Duration of Agreement	4
Article 3-Savings Clause	4
Article 4-Management Rights	5
Article 5-Employee Rights	6
Article 6-Strikes and Lockouts	6
Article 7-Non-Discrimination	6
Article 8-Grievance Procedure	6
Article 9-Disciplinary Procedure	
Article 10-Reduction in Force	\ \ 9
DIVISION II-BENEFITS	1 1
Article 1-Liability Insurance	10
Article 2-Group Insurance	/ / 10
Article 3-Seniority List	/ / 14
Article 4-Vacancies and Promotions	14
Article 5-Retirement	15
DIVISION III-CONDITIONS	
Article 1-Occupational Safety and Health	15
Article 2-Hours	16
Article 3-Bulletin Boards	1.7
DIVISION IV-LEAVE	/
Article 1-Court Leave	17
Article 2-Holiday	17
Article 3-Leave of Absence	18
Article 4-On the Job Injury and/or In the Line of Duty	20
Article 5-Shift Trading	22
Article 6-Sick Leave	23
Article 7-Union Business	25
Article 8-Vacation	26
DIVISION V-WAGES AND OTHER MONEY ITEMS	
Article 1-Longevity	29
Article 2-Mileage Allowance	29
Article 3-Regular Overtime and Emergency Overtime	29
Article 4-Payroll Deduction of Dues	31
Article 5-Special Skills Incentive	32
Article 6-Tahoe Basin Living Incentive	32
Article 7-Uniform Allowance	32
Article 8-Working Out of Classification	33
Article 9-Educational Incentive	33
Article 10-Salary	35
APPENDIX-WAGE SCALE	37



# <u>DIVISION I LEGAL</u> <u>ARTICLE 1</u> RECOGNITION

#### **SECTION 1-Union recognition**

The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining agent for all eligible Employees of the Fire District per Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) Chapter 288. The Contract shall exclude all part-time Employees.

An Employee will be considered as a probationary Employee until he/she has completed one (1) year of employment. The one (1) year period shall begin upon assignment to a shift. A first year probationary Employee may be terminated at the discretion of the Employer, and such termination shall not be subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of Division 1, Article 8.

# ARTICLE 2 DURATION OF AGREEMENT

#### **SECTION 1-Duration of agreement**

The effective date of this contract is July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 per NRS 288. When the contract is due for renewal, salary and five (5) articles may be opened for negotiation by each side, plus any other articles mutually agreed upon. All appropriate date changes will be made in addition to these articles in both cases.

### ARTICLE 3 SAVINGS CLAUSE

This agreement was amended and entered into by both parties on July 1, 1985 in a good faith attempt to comply with the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). All amendments with regard to FLSA were reached by mutual understanding and agreement.

This agreement is the entire agreement between the parties, terminating all other prior agreements, arrangements, and practices during the term of this agreement. The Employer shall from time to time meet with the Union to discuss its views relative to the administration of the agreement. Further discussions may take place upon request by the Union. Should any provisions of this agreement be found in contravention of any Federal or State Law, such particular provisions shall be null and void but all other provisions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effective until otherwise canceled or amended.

Upon such decision to nullify or void any article found in contravention of Federal or State Law, renegotiation of such article or articles shall commence within thirty (30) days following that decision.

BK : 10 13 PG : 5683 10/29/20 1

If an agreement is not reached between the Union and the Employer for the next fiscal year, the existing agreement will remain in effect and valid until a new agreement is reached by both parties, or by the arbitration process, in accordance with NRS 288.

The Employer agrees not to sell or convey or cause to sell or convey or otherwise transfer or merge its operations to or with a new Employer without first securing an agreement with the successor to assume the Employer's obligations until the expiration of this agreement.

The District agrees to meet and negotiate with the Union over the impacts and effects of any decision to contract, subcontract, consolidate or transfer its operation(s) to a successor Employer or agency. Nothing in this Article prevents the District from making the decision to contract, subcontract, consolidate or transfer its operation(s) to a successor Employer or agency.

# ARTICLE 4 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

### **SECTION 1-Rights of management**

Those subject matters which are not within the scope of mandatory bargaining and which are reserved to the local government Employer without negotiation include:

- a) The rights to hire, direct, assign or transfer an Employee, but excluding the right to assign or transfer as a form of discipline.
- b) The right to reduce in force or lay off any Employee because of lack of work or lack of money, subject to paragraph (v) of subsection 2, of NRS 288.150.
- c) The right to determine:
  - 1. Appropriate staffing levels and work performance standards, except for safety considerations;
  - 2. The content of the work day, including without limitation work load factors, except for safety considerations;
  - 3. The quality and quantity of services to be offered to the public; and
  - 4. Safety of the public.

#### **SECTION 2-Emergency rights**

Notwithstanding the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement negotiated, a local government Employer is entitled to take whatever actions may be necessary to carry out its responsibilities in situations of emergency such as a riot, military action, natural disaster or civil disorder.

Those actions may include the suspension of any collective bargaining agreement for the duration of the emergency. Any action taken under the provisions of this subsection must not be construed as a failure to negotiate in good faith.

BK: 1013 PG: 5684 10/29/2013

#### **SECTION 3-Responsibility to community**

The Employer shall have ultimate right and responsibility as the local government agency to manage its operation in the most efficient manner, consistent with the best interests of all its citizens, taxpayers, and Employees.

#### SECTION 4-Negotiation outside of mandatory bargaining

The Employer may, but is not required to, negotiate matters which are outside the scope of mandatory bargaining.

# ARTICLE 5 EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Any benefit now existing may not be reduced below its present level, whether such benefit is the subject of the contract or established custom of the Employer; except that any such benefit shall be subject to negotiation and may be eliminated, reduced, or increased as a result of such negotiations.

# ARTICLE 6 STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

Neither the Union nor any Employee covered by this Agreement will promote, sponsor or engage in any strike, stoppage of work, absence from work upon any pretext of excuse such as illness, which is not founded in fact or on any other intentional interruption of the operations of the Employer regardless of the reason for so doing.

### ARTICLE 7 NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Employer and the Union agree not to discriminate against any Employee in accord with NRS 233.010 and Federal Laws.

## ARTICLE 8 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### **SECTION 1-Definitions**

Grievance: A disagreement in the application, interpretation, or enforcement of the terms of this agreement. All other complaints or matters may be pursued in accordance with subsection 4 of this article.

Grievant: the Employee and/or Union Representation bringing the grievance.

District: the Fire District or its representative.

#### **SECTION 2-Grievance procedure**

Every effort will be made to adhere to the specified time lines. Exceptions can only be granted by mutual written agreement.

Members of the Union can present a grievance while on-duty provided it does not disrupt the workday.

Most disagreements can be resolved without going through the grievance process. All members are encouraged to attempt to resolve any dispute on an oral basis beginning with the immediate supervisor and progressing through the chain of command. If the dispute cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of the Employee, the Employee may institute the written grievance process.

Step 1:

The Grievant shall advise the Grievance Committee and the Fire Chief in writing within seven (7) calendar days of becoming aware of the grievance issue and that a grievance has been initiated. The Grievant and a member of the Grievance Committee will schedule a meeting with the Fire Chief as soon as possible. At the meeting with the Fire Chief, all accumulated documentation relating to the grievance will be presented and time will be allowed for the Fire Chief to interview the Grievant. The Fire Chief will have seven calendar days to respond, in writing, to the Grievant and Grievance Committee with a decision. If the Grievant or Grievance Committee is not satisfied with the decision, he/she/they may proceed to Step 2.

Step 2:

The Chairperson of the Board for Tahoe Douglas Fire District will be notified by the Grievance Committee that an unresolved contract grievance is pending and has proceeded to Step 2. The Chairperson shall agendize a hearing at the first Board meeting that is at least three (3) weeks but no longer than 45 calendar days in the future.

The Grievance Committee and the Fire Chief or his/her designee will present written briefs detailing the grievance to the Board no less than seven (7) days prior to the Board meeting. The Board may interview involved parties at the scheduled meeting. The Board, after the hearing, will render its decision at that time.

Step 3:

If the Grievant or Grievance Committee and the Board have still not reached resolution, they may, by mutual agreement, seek a Federal Mediator for mediation. If both parties agree, mediation will be binding. If the decision is not binding, step 4 may be used.

Step 4:

Within seven (7) calendar days from the receipt of the mediator's determination, should the Grievant, upon consultation with the Grievance Committee or Board wish to pursue the matter, arrangements shall be made to submit all findings and correspondence to binding arbitration as set forth by the Laws of the State of Nevada.



BK: 10 13 PG: 5686 10/29/2013

a) An arbitrator shall be selected from a list of seven (7) names supplied by the American Arbitration Association by alternately striking names from the list with the Union striking the first name. The arbitration shall be conducted under the rules of the American Arbitration Association.

- b) The findings of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on all parties concerned.
- c) The cost of arbitration shall be born as follows:
  - The expenses, wages and other compensation of any
    witness called before the arbitrator shall be borne by the
    party calling such witness. Other expenses incurred, such
    as professional services, consultations, preparation of
    briefs, and data to be presented to the arbitrator, shall be
    born separately by the respective parties.
  - The arbitrator's fees and expenses and the cost of any hearing room shall be borne by the losing party to the arbitration. The arbitrator will be requested to specify costs.
  - 3. The cost of a court reporter and the original transcript will be borne by the party requesting them. In the event an arbitrator requests a court reporter and the original transcript, the cost shall be borne by the losing party.
- d) In case of discipline, the arbitrator's authority shall be limited to the written charges against the member.

#### **SECTION 3-Grievance Committee disclosure**

The Union shall provide the Employer with the names of the three (3) members of the Grievance Committee.

#### **SECTION 4-Informal process**

Nothing contained herein shall preclude any Employee with or without representation from bringing a problem, not covered herein, through the chain of command to the Fire Chief and then to the Board of the Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District on an informal and oral basis.

# ARTICLE 9 DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

Whenever possible, discipline should be progressive (e.g.: verbal reprimand, written, etc.) An officer may discipline a member of their crew, which may include suspension without pay up to two (2) shifts or forty-eight (48) hours, if warranted.

Only the Fire Chief or his/her designee may impose discipline involving a longer suspension without pay, demotion, or termination. Such disciplinary action is subject to the following procedures:



- a) Written notice, or letter, describing the Employee's violation or charges, etc. what action was taken or proposed and the reason for such action.
- b) The right of the Employee to respond either orally or in writing to the officer imposing such discipline.
- c) The Fire Chief shall review all disciplinary action and when finding in favor of the Employee will reinstate the Employee with full back pay and benefits.
- d) That the Employee may be entitled to a hearing before an arbitrator in accordance with the established grievance procedure.
- e) These pre-removal procedures do not affect the ability of the Employer to use the probationary period to determine an Employee's suitability for the job.

No material written for the purpose of discipline or correcting an Employee's actions will be placed in that Employee's file without the Employee's signature or a witness' signature that the subject matter was discussed with the Employee.

If an Employee is not suspended for forty-eight (48) hours without pay on the discovery of their violation, a fourteen (14) day written notice must be provided to the Employee announcing any suspension without pay.

### ARTICLE 10 REDUCTION IN FORCE

### **SECTION 1 Seniority-Reduction in force**

In the case of a personnel reduction, the Employee with the least Fire District seniority shall be laid off first. The Employee with the next least Fire District seniority shall be laid off next and so on up the list. No new Employee shall be hired until the laid off Employee has been given the opportunity to return to work. An Employee who is returned to their position after a layoff would retain previously accrued sick leave and seniority.

An employee laid off due to reduction in force shall have re-hire rights for up to 3 years from the lay-off date. Order of re-hire will be in reverse order of lay-offs, based on persons meeting qualifications of the open position.

Employees who have been laid off due to a reduction in work force shall provide their current address and phone number to the Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District if they wish to be contacted in the event a position should become available for reemployment.

Employee or designated representative shall respond in writing to certified mail within ten (10) business days after receipt of notification that a position of employment is available. If no response is received within (10) days by the Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District that individual will forfeit reemployment.

#### **SECTION 2-Rank demotion**

If any staffing reduction leads to an Employee's demotion in rank, the most recently promoted Employee of any rank will be the first to be demoted. The Employee will be demoted to the rank he/she held immediately prior to promotion.

# ARTICLE 1 LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Employer shall provide public liability and medical malpractice insurance protection covering the Employees of the Fire District.

# ARTICLE 2 GROUP INSURANCE

#### **SECTION 1-Insurance benefits**

The Employer agrees to provide group health, life, disability, and accidental death and dismemberment insurance to all Employees and group health insurance to qualified retirees and COBRA participants.

Effective January 1, 2013, the Fire District's Group Health Insurance Plan for Employees and qualified retirees will change from Aetna Health fund Open Choice (PPO)-Nevada PPO HSA Preferred Plan 4 to Anthem NV Lumenos NGF HSA 22a \$3000, 80%, Rx.s1012, with \$3000 individual, \$6000 family deductible, 80%/20% co-insurance level, with max out of pocket over deductible of: singles of \$2000, dependent of \$4000. This plan has no lifetime maximums.

The Fire District will make deposits to the HSA as follows:

Employees and qualified retirees as the single classification will have \$2220 deposited into their Health Savings Account, Employees and qualified retirees insured as two party classifications will have \$4440 deposited into their Health Savings Account, and the family classification will have \$3960 deposited into their Health Savings Account. Retirees qualified as less than 100% will have the stipulated percentage deposited.

Deposits for fifty percent (50%) of above stipulated amounts will be made on the first business day of July and the first business day of January of each year. The Fire District will pay all Health Saving Account bank expenses.

The District's Flexible Spending Plan (FSP) will be transitional to maintain compliance with IRS rules governing HSA and FSP use.

The Fire District will provide an Anthem PPO plan with benefits similar to the Anthem NV Lumenos NGF HSA 22a \$3000, 80%, Rx.s.1012. Plan year January 1, 2013 will be Anthem standard PPO BS 5 \$25/\$50, \$500 Deductible, 80% for Employees and retirees otherwise prohibited by law from contributing to a Health Savings Account.

If the participant is covered on the Fire District PPO plan, a monthly contribution deduction as described below will be processed through payroll or PERS.

#### Monthly:

Employees only deduction -\$40.00; Employees + 1 deduction -\$80.00; Employees + Family deduction -\$120.00;

An Employee who adds a qualified dependent that causes their status to change from one-party to two-party during the policy year shall have the balance of the two-party HSA contribution funded on an as-needed basis for the remainder of the policy year, upon receipt of an explanation of benefits.

The Employer shall select two (2) members of management and the Union shall select two (2) members of the Union to serve on the Insurance Advisory Committee. Both management and union will mutually agree on a selection of one retiree and one alternate retiree to serve on the Insurance Advisory Committee annually. If for any reason the retiree position/s cannot be filled, the Insurance Advisory Committee will continue business without their representation. The Insurance Advisory Committee shall be responsible for benefit selection and provisions of the health care coverage. Any changes shall be subject to the negotiations process.

The Collective Bargaining Agreement Insurance Article (Div. II, Article 2, Section 1), will be opened for negotiations at the time of Health Insurance renewal should the Union or District see a financial impact or benefit to re-opening. Additional articles may be opened at this time upon mutual agreement by the Union and District.

#### **SECTION 2-Retiree Benefit Schedule**

### Employees hired before June 1, 2003 will be subject to the following insurance benefit package.

Subject to the stipulation described hereafter, the Employer agrees to pay for Group Health Care insurance coverage for all qualified retirees who retire on or after July1, 1999, and the Employees' legal spouse at the time of retirement. The Employer agrees to pay 100% of the monthly insurance premium and the two-party HSA contribution for a qualified retiree with twenty (20) years of service and the retiree's spouse.

#### Stipulation:

- 19 years limited to 90% of the combined monthly premium and HSA contribution
- 18 years limited to 80% of the combined monthly premium and HSA contribution
- 17 years limited to 70% of the combined monthly premium and HSA contribution



- 16 years limited to 60% of the combined monthly premium and HSA contribution
- 15 years limited to 50% of the combined monthly premium and HSA contribution
- Less than 15 years of service No district subsidy

A retiree may request that the District apply the combined subsidy primarily to the monthly premium with any remaining balance applied to the HSA.

The Employer's payment of retiree and spouse health insurance coverage shall begin when the retired Employee attains the age of fifty (50) years provided the Employee is qualified as stated above.

### Employees hired on or after June 1, 2003 will be subject to the following insurance benefit package.

Subject to the stipulation hereafter, the Employer agrees to pay for Group Health Care insurance coverage for all qualified retirees who retire on or after June 1, 2023. The Employee's legal spouse at time of retirement may also qualify. The Employer agrees to pay 100% of the monthly premium and two-party HSA contribution for a qualified retiree with twenty five (25) years of service and the retiree's spouse.

#### Stipulation:

- 24 years 100% of employee's monthly premium/ 80% of spouse's monthly premium and 90% of the two-party HSA contribution
- 23 years 100% of employee's monthly premium/ 60% of spouse's monthly premium and 80% of the two-party HSA contribution
- 22 years 100% of employee's monthly premium/ 40% of spouse's monthly premium and 70% of the two-party HSA contribution
- 21 years 100% of employee's monthly premium/ 20% of spouse's monthly premium and 60% of the two-party HSA contribution
- 20 years 100% of employee premium and single party HSA contribution
- Less than 20 years, No district subsidy

A retiree may request that the District apply the combined subsidy primarily to the monthly premium with any remaining balance applied to the HSA.

The Employer's payment of retiree and spouse health insurance premium shall begin when the retired Employee attains the age of fifty five (55) years provided the Employee is qualified as stated above.

The Employer's responsibility for retiree insurance coverage will terminate for the retired Employee upon the retiree's death or attaining Medicare age and for the retiree's spouse upon the spouse's death, attaining Medicare age or upon dissolution of the marriage between the retiree and his or her spouse, whichever occurs first.

BK: 10 13 PG: 569 1 10/29/20 13

#### The following applies to all qualified retirees:

Enrollment status will be "limited to" and "identified as" the legal spouse and /or legal dependent/s at the time of retirement. No additional spouses/dependents will be covered under the District's allowance agreement after the Employee retires.

If an otherwise qualified Employee retires before age fifty (50) or fifty five (55) as stipulated above, the Employee may remain on the District's current group health policy by paying premiums out of pocket until age fifty (50) or fifty five (55).

All qualified insurance retirees/spouses who reach Medicare eligible age sixty five (65) will be required to move to Medicare. The Employer will be financially responsible for all Medicare Part A premiums due for each Medicare qualified participant. Medicare B premiums will be the financial responsibility of every Medicare participant. Any penalties incurred as a result of mandatory timelines required for Medicare Part-D enrollment will be the financial responsibility of the participant.

The Employer will contribute \$225.00 per month into a health reimbursement account (HRA) in each participant's name starting with the month the participant is enrolled. Future premium increases to supplements Part D and F will be applied to this dollar amount, not to exceed five percent (5%) of total each year.

Any participant who is a percentage qualified retiree will have their corresponding pro-rated percentage amount deposited in the HRA.

The Employer's responsibility for retiree insurance coverage will terminate for the retired Employee upon retiree's death and for the retiree's spouse upon the spouse's death or upon dissolution of the marriage between the retiree and his or her spouse.

This benefit was initiated in lieu of a two percent (2%) increase in fiscal year 2000-2001.

#### **SECTION 3-Life Insurance bonus**

Any Employee who does not use more than one (1) shift of sick leave or does not have an on-the-job injury requiring a workers' compensation claim during the fiscal year will have \$1,000 added to the face value of his/her life insurance policy. The additional life insurance benefit shall be funded from the District's General fund.

#### SECTION 4-Cafeteria Plan

The Employer agrees to offer a cafeteria plan to all bargaining unit Employees providing the annual financial impact to the Health Insurance fund does not exceed \$7,500.00.



# ARTICLE 3 SENIORITY LIST

#### **SECTION 1-Seniority list**

The Union and Employer agree that a seniority list showing the date of hire and the date of the last promotion shall be established and brought up-to-date annually and made available to all Employees.

#### **SECTION 2-Seniority affected by leave**

Seniority shall not be broken by annual leave, sick leave, suspension, or any leave(s) without pay. Any Employee on a leave of absence of more than thirty (30) days will not accrue any additional seniority, but will retain all previously accrued seniority.

### **SECTION 3-Accrual of seniority**

Seniority shall be determined by continuous service in the Fire District, calculated from the date of employment. Continuous service shall be broken only by resignation, discharge or retirement. Seniority between two (2) or more new Employees of equal rank shall be determined by their entrance exam scores for the purpose of placing them on the seniority list. When an Employee is promoted and their hire date is the same as other Employees of their previous rank, the Employee who has been promoted shall be placed higher on the seniority list.

## ARTICLE 4 VACANCIES AND PROMOTIONS

#### **SECTION 1-Internal hiring**

All vacancies and promotions within the District shall be filled by members of the District should they meet the requirements of the position prior to the promotion becoming available.

#### **SECTION 2-Promotional Process**

- a) A reference list that may be used for studying purposes (if available) will be posted ninety (90) calendar days prior to the exam.
- b) Competitive tests shall consist of written, practical, oral and/or assessment lab. Announcements for promotional examinations shall be posted in each fire station sixty (60) calendar days prior to the closing date for applications. Applications received after the closing date will not be considered.
- d) All results of tests given in-house will be posted within five (5) working days and will be kept confidential by the test proctors until posted. All applicants will be notified of their final score and their relative standing. The period of eligibility of the promotional list shall be for three (3) years, at which time all applicants must re-test and re-establish their eligibility.

- e) An Employee shall serve a minimum probationary period of twelve (12) months. If, during that period, the Employee fails to perform satisfactorily the duties of the new position, they will be permitted to return to their original position without loss of seniority in their prior rank.
- f) Engineer and Captain promotional exams will be given no less than every three (3) years unless mutually agreed upon by both parties and will be staggered up to nine (9) months. To allow for candidate test preparation, only one (1) testing period can be open at a time with the Engineer exam preceding the Captain exam.

### **SECTION 4-EOD**

All EOD appointments and assignments are at the discretion of management and are not considered promotions. Therefore, they will not be subject to this article.

# ARTICLE 5 RETIREMENT

The Employer and Union agree that all employees shall participate in the State of Nevada's Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) and in accord with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). It is also agreed that in accord with NRS 286.421 (3)(a)(1), that any increase in the contribution shall be shared equally between the Employer and the Union Members. However, the Union Members portion of the increase shall be made by the employer in lieu of equivalent basic salary increases or cost-of living increases, or both for the fiscal year 2013-2014.

# <u>DIVISION III CONDITIONS</u> <u>ARTICLE 1</u> OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

#### **SECTION 1-Joint Safety Committee**

A joint Union/Employer Occupational Safety and Health Committee shall be established comprised of not more than three (3) representatives from the Union plus the Union President and all members of staff. The Union shall submit the names of their representatives within thirty (30) days of the implementation of this contract.

#### **SECTION 2-Committee meetings**

The Committee will meet at least quarterly. Additional meetings may be called by either Chairperson for the purpose of inspecting, investigating, and reviewing health and safety conditions concerning Employees including Engine Company staffing levels and resource allocation. The Committee or any of its representatives shall submit to the Fire Chief and the Union President reports concerning safety and health conditions of the Employees.

BK 1013 PG: 5694 10/29/2013

Nothing in this article shall alter or reduce management's rights as specified in Division I, Article 4 of this agreement.

#### **SECTION 3-Fitness recommendation**

The Committee shall review and make written recommendations for the implementation of a systematic physical fitness program.

#### **SECTION 4-Drug and Alcohol policy**

The Employer and the Union agree to adhere to and follow the Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace Policy as amended.

The District and the Union agree to the language, processes, procedures, actions, and outcomes related to discipline contained in the TDFPD Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace Policy. Any changes to this policy that affects employee discipline will be agreed to by the District and the Union.

# ARTICLE 2 HOURS

#### **SECTION 1-7K exemption**

In an effort to meet the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) as it applies to firefighters, the Employer and the Union jointly declare the FLSA 7K exemption for all line personnel (FF, FF/PM, ENG, and Captains).

#### **SECTION 2-Work period**

The normal work period of personnel covered by this agreement shall consist of fifty six (56) hours per week scheduled in twenty four (24) hours shifts as follows:

#### XXOOOOXXOOOOXXOOOOXX

Any personnel covered by this agreement may be assigned by mutual agreement other than twenty four (24) hour shifts on a limited basis and receive full compensation as a fifty six (56) hour Employee to allow participation in special assignments based on District needs.

#### **SECTION 3-Consecutive shifts**

Shift personnel shall not be on duty for more than three (3) consecutive twenty four (24) hour shifts without at least twenty four (24) hours off before returning to duty. It is the Employee's responsibility to comply with this article and still be available to work regularly scheduled shifts.

Complying with this article will not cause hours to be added to the overtime list as is the current policy.

BK 1013 PG 5695 10/29/2013

Exceptions to this article will be made for emergency incidents and scheduled training of eight (8) hours or less. In addition, when unusual circumstances occur, a chief officer may approve an exception.

#### SECTION 4-40 hour

All forty (40) hour Employees work week will be Monday-Friday, 0800-1700.

# ARTICLE 3 BULLETIN BOARDS

The Employer agrees to furnish and maintain space for suitable bulletin boards as presently provided in each station to be used by the Union. These bulletin boards will be for posting bulletins.

# DIVISION IV LEAVE ARTICLE 1 COURT LEAVE

#### **SECTION 1-Jury/Witness duty**

Any Employee called to serve on jury duty or as a witness, excluding as a defendant or plaintiff, on a normally scheduled work day shall receive their regular pay and shall refund jury duty pay (less travel expense paid by the court) to the District. The District shall retain the right to petition any party issuing a subpoena for reimbursement of Employee cost to the District.

#### **SECTION 2-Jury duty release**

Those persons called but not selected to serve on jury duty or as a witness shall report back to work when excused or when court is adjourned for the day.

#### **SECTION 3-Fire District court cases**

Employees will receive their regular rate of pay while on duty when required to appear as a witness or defendant for Fire District associated court cases. The Employee shall receive overtime at time and one half of their regular pay, when required as a defendant or witness for Fire District associated cases, while off duty.

### ARTICLE 2 HOLIDAY

#### **SECTION 1-District Holidays**

The following holidays are those which shall be recognized and observed by the Fire District.



BK . 10 13 PG · 5696 10/29/20 1

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Day
President's Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Columbus Day
Nevada Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving (Family Day)
Christmas Day

#### **SECTION 2-Holiday pay**

The Employer agrees to pay each Employee required to work twenty four (24) hour shifts four (4) percent of his/her base salary. Compensation for holiday pay shall be based on a fifty six (56) hour wage.

# ARTICLE 3 LEAVE OF ABSENCE

### **SECTION 1-Military Leave**

Military Leave shall be granted in accordance with the provisions of the Nevada State Law.

#### **SECTION 2-Maternity Leave**

Pregnant Employees will use accumulated sick leave and/or vacation time for maternity leave and may apply for a Leave of Absence under Section 3 or 5 of this article. Two (2) consecutive shifts of sick leave may be granted immediately following the birth of an Employee's child and will not affect bonus shift status.

#### **SECTION 3-Leave of Absence**

The Fire Chief may grant an Employee a Leave of Absence without pay or accrual of seniority and sick leave. Such Leave of Absence shall not exceed one (1) year. The Employee must make such request in writing setting forth the reasons for the request. Upon expiration of such approved Leave of Absence, the Employee will be reinstated to the position held at the time the leave was granted. Failure of the Employee on Leave of Absence to return to duty at its expiration shall be cause for dismissal. The Employer agrees to pay Group Insurance Premiums during any thirty (30) day Leave of Absence without pay.

#### **SECTION 4-Sick leave/Seniority**

Accrued sick leave and seniority shall not be lost as a result of a leave without pay.

BK 1013 PG: 5697 10/29/2013

#### **SECTION 5-Federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)**

Employees who qualify for benefits covered in the FMLA of 1993 shall be eligible for a maximum of twelve (12) weeks leave, without pay, during a twelve (12) month period.

Employees shall be eligible for sick leave, without pay, when they qualify for any of the following situations:

- a) The birth or adoption of a child of the Employee, or the care of a son or daughter who has a serious health condition.
- b) The care of a parent or spouse of an Employee who has a serious health condition.
- c) An Employee with a serious health condition which makes an Employee unable to perform the functions of his or her position.

If an Employee chooses to request leave under FMLA for Section #5a, they shall first use the procedures set forth in Division IV, Article #3, Section #2 (for pregnant Employees) or Division IV, Article #6, section #4 (Emergency Sick Leave for family illness). Any time off used by an Employee that is covered under these two articles/sections shall be deducted from the twelve (12) week leave without pay allotment.

If an Employee chooses to request leave under the FMLA for Section #5b, they shall first use the procedures set forth in Division IV, Article #3, Section #4 (Emergency Sick Leave for family illness). Any time off used by an Employee that is covered under Division IV, article #6, Section #4 shall be deducted from the twelve (12) week leave without pay allotment.

Employees off work on leave covered by FMLA shall not be eligible for Overtime pay or Emergency Call Back pay.

If an Employee's need for leave, covered under FMLA is foreseeable, the Employee shall provide thirty (30) days advance notice to the Fire Chief.

When an Employee requests leave for personal sickness or to care for a sick family member, a doctor's certification is required reporting each of the following items:

- a) Date of commencement of serious health condition;
- b) Probable duration of condition;
- c) "Appropriate medical facts" about condition;
- d) If leave for Employee's own illness, a statement that Employee "is unable to perform the functions of the position";
- e) If leave for care of sick family member, a statement that Employee is needed for such care;
- f) For intermittent care:
  - 1. Dates of expected treatment; and
  - 2. Duration of expected treatment.

The Fire Chief may request a second opinion if he/she "has reason to doubt the validity" of certification. The Fire District bears the expense of the second opinion and has the right to

BK : 10 13 PG : 5698 10/29/20 13

designate or approve the physician, except that it cannot be a provider "employed on a regular basis by Employer." If the second opinion differs from the certification offered by the Employee, the Fire Chief may request a third opinion. Employee and District must agree on the third opinion provider and the District pays the costs. The third opinion is binding on the Employee and Employer.

If the need for the leave involves planned medical treatment or supervision, the Employee must make reasonable efforts to schedule the leave to avoid disruption of the Fire District's operations, subject to the approval of the health care provider of the individual requiring the treatment or supervision.

When an Employee is off work under the provision of FMLA, he or she shall be eligible to remain on the Fire District's Group Health Insurance Policy. Insurance Premiums shall be paid by the Fire District. If the Fire District has paid the Employees premiums during the absence of the Employee, the Fire District may require the Employee to pay back the cost of the premiums should the Employee fail to return from FMLA leave. Such premium endorsement shall be deducted from the Employee's final pay check.

Employees off work on FMLA leave shall not accrue sick leave and vacation time. Seniority shall be maintained as described in Division II, Article 3, Section 2.

#### **DEFINITIONS:**

FMLA broadly defines "son or daughter" as a biological, adopted or foster child, a stepchild, a legal ward or a child of a person standing in loco parentis who is under eighteen (18) years of age or eighteen (18) years of age or older and incapable of self-care because of mental or physical disability. FMLA also broadly defines a "parent" as a biological parent of the child or an individual who stood in loco parentis to a child when the child was a son or daughter. FMLA defines "spouse" as a husband or wife.

A "serious health condition" is defined as an illness, impairment or physical or mental condition which involves inpatient care in a hospital, hospice or residential medical care facility, or continuing treatment supervision by a health care provider.

# ARTICLE 4 ON THE JOB INJURY AND/OR IN THE LINE OF DUTY

#### SECTION 1-On the Job Injury absence/transitional duty

When an Employee is absent due to an on-the-job-injury for a period up to thirty (30) calendar days from the date of injury, they will receive compensation equal to their salary on acceptance of their claim by the current Industrial Insurance carrier. During this period, the Employee shall not forfeit any accrued benefits.

If, after the expiration of thirty (30) calendar days the Employee is still unable to work, they may elect to utilize accrued sick leave and accrued vacation (after sick leave is expended) to



supplement their Industrial Insurance payments. Should the Employee choose not to supplement their Industrial Insurance payments, they may request a leave of absence from the Fire District.

It shall be the Employee's obligation to notify the attending physician that "transitional duty" with "Specified Physician Limitations" for on-the-job-injuries can be made available. If such duty is assigned, the Employee shall continue to receive all compensation and benefits attached to their regularly assigned position.

#### SECTION 2-On the Job Injury criteria

Employees shall be entitled to the following on-the-job-injury benefits based on these criteria:

- 1. The injury must be sustained while performing assigned duties during emergency situations, i.e., fires, vehicle accidents, rescues, Haz-Mat incidents, etc.
- 2. The Employee must be following all prescribed safety policies and procedures, i.e. wearing full protective clothing and equipment when necessary; using tools and equipment properly; and generally exercising prudent care while performing any functions on the emergency ground. Remember: Safety takes precedence over tactical efficiency.
- 3. Injuries sustained while getting on or off apparatus, removing or replacing tools and equipment in an unsafe manner, not using protective clothing and equipment provided, or generally not exercising due care under the conditions existing are examples that would not be covered under this section.
- 4. If there is any question as to whether or not an injury is covered under this section, the claimant must present their case, preferably with witnesses, to the Employer's Occupational Safety and Health Committee. This committee shall consist of not more than three (3) staff and three (3) Union members, excluding the Fire Chief and the Union President. If a two-thirds majority of the committee agrees to accept or deny the claim that will be deemed to be the final decision.
- 5. If a two-thirds majority cannot agree, then the case would proceed to an appeals board consisting of the Fire Chief, the Chairman of the Board, and the Union president. Their decision would be final and binding.

When an Employee is eligible at the same time for benefits under chapter 616 or 617 of NRS (Industrial Insurance and Occupational Disease Acts) and for sick leave benefits, they shall not be required to use accrued sick leave for the period during which the State Industrial Insurance System or Occupational Disease Act benefits are being received.

Any Employee who suffers a job-connected injury or illness meeting the above criteria for which benefits are paid under 616 or 617 of NRS and such injury prevents said Employee from performing their normal full time duties, the Employer shall pay full salary to the Employee for a period of up to but not exceeding a cumulative of ninety (90) consecutive calendar days immediately following the date of injury and the Employee shall continue to accrue all benefits. During the ninety (90) day period, the Employee shall not forfeit any accrued sick leave, provided the Employee returns any industrial insurance pay to the Employer, exclusive of reimbursement or payment of hospital or medical expenses.



Subsequent to the ninety (90) day period in the above paragraph the Employee may, at the option of the Employee, apply for and receive accrued sick leave during the course of such disability. The amount of sick leave benefits paid to such Employee for any pay period shall not exceed the difference between their normal salary and amount of any industrial insurance benefit received.

When accrued sick leave has expired and the Employee is still unable to work, they may utilize their accumulated vacation leave. The amount of vacation leave benefit paid to such Employee for any pay period shall not exceed the difference between their normal salary and the amount of industrial insurance benefits received during which period the Employee shall receive full compensation from the Employer, provided they return industrial insurance compensation to the Employer.

If at any time subsequent to the date of the on-the-job injury the Employee's physician feels that they can return to work in a "transitional duty" position without aggravating their current injury, the Employer may make available such "transitional duty" work taking into account any "Specified Physician Limitations." If such duty is assigned, the Employee shall continue to receive all compensation and benefits attached to their regularly assigned position. The work schedule for the "transitional duty" will be assigned at the discretion of the Employer.

#### SECTION 3-On the Job Injury/shift trade

An Employee scheduled to work a shift as a trade, who is unable to work due to an on-the-job injury, shall have the option of: cancelling the trade, finding another Employee to work the trade, use vacation or sick leave.

# ARTICLE 5 SHIFT TRADING

#### **SECTION 1-Shift Trade Criteria**

When an Employee wishes to trade a work period with another Employee, the following criteria shall be followed:

- a) In order to qualify under FLSA section 7(p), an agreement between individuals employed by a public agency to substitute for one another at their own options must be approved by the agency. This requires that the agency be aware of the arrangements prior to the work being done, i.e.: the Employer must know what work is being done, by whom it is being done, and where and when it is being done. Approval is manifest when the Employer is aware of the substitution and indicates approval in whatever is the customary manner. Customary Manner Defined: Trade Form F-28 must be completed and be approved by the proper company officer and submitted to the Duty Chief for approval no less than twenty four (24) hours before the trade is to take place or on Friday before 17:00 hours for trades on Sundays and Mondays.
- b) Upon approval of such trades, they become regularly scheduled work periods and Employees are obliged to work that time.

c) If a member trades with another and he or she is ill, sick leave may be used. If he or she cannot report for unforeseen reasons, the Duty Chief shall reschedule such payment at the District's earliest convenience.

#### **SECTION 2-Trade Restrictions**

The following trade restrictions shall apply:

- a) No Employee on sick leave will be permitted to work for another Employee.
- b) Shift trading privileges will commence for a first year probationary Employee at the completion of the probationary period. The Fire Chief or designated representative may grant exceptions.
- c) All trades must involve a minimum duration of two (2) hours.
- d) Employees may substitute work periods only if they work in the same capacity.
- e) Employees who wish to alter previously approved substitution time periods must withdraw the initial trade form and resubmit trade forms noting the new substitution times traded.

#### **SECTION 3-Special Cases**

If an on duty Employee wishes to substitute any of that time they are working on that shift and has not submitted a trade form in the customary manner (24 hours prior to the trade taking place) that Employee must:

- a) Contact their supervisor for prior approval.
- b) Submit the trade form in the customary manner, excluding the twenty-four (24) hour requirement, to the duty chief prior to the substitution taking place.
- c) If the duty chief is not in his/her office to receive the trade form, the Employee wanting the trade shall contact the duty chief via phone and make arrangements for submitting the trade form.

# ARTICLE 6 SICK LEAVE

#### **SECTION 1-Sick Leave Accrual**

All Employees shall be entitled to sick and disability leave with pay which may be cumulative from year to year not to exceed 2,160 hours for the twenty four (24) hour shift Employee and 1,440 for the eight (8) hour Employee.

Twenty four (24) hour shift Employees:

Sick leave shall accrue at the rate of sixteen (16) hours per month.

Eight hour (8) Employees:

Sick leave shall accrue at the rate of ten (10) hours per month.

#### **SECTION 2-Doctor's Release**

A doctor's release or medical clearance may be required by the Fire Chief to return to work following any absence from duty exceeding twenty four (24) hours due to illness or injury.

BK: 1013 PG: 5702 10/29/2013

The Fire Chief reserves the right to select the appropriate physician. The cost for such release shall be paid at the District's expense. Such release must state the Employee's ability to perform his regular Fire District duties.

#### **SECTION 3 - Funeral Leave**

Up to six (6) days or four (4) shifts of sick leave may be used by a member in the event of a death or imminent death of a member of their immediate family. Immediate family shall be defined as: mother, father, sister, brother, children, spouse, in-laws and grandparents. Imminent death will be logged as emergency vacation until death occurs within the contract year.

Bonus shifts will not be affected by use of sick leave for attending funerals of family and relatives as defined above.

### **SECTION 4 - Emergency Sick Leave for Family Illness**

Up to four (4) days, or two (2) shifts, of emergency sick leave per year may be used for the purpose of arranging for family care in cases of "Extreme Illness".

The determination of "Extreme Illness" shall be made by the attending physician. The duty chief shall be informed by the physician's office immediately via telephone, with written notice given to the duty chief upon the Employee's return to work.

If a family member is not being attended to by a physician, the illness will not be considered "Extreme". Attending to well children while another member of the family is ill or recuperating is not authorized use of sick leave.

Bonus shifts will not be affected by emergency sick leave for family illness.

#### **SECTION 5 - Child Birth Leave**

Pregnant Employees will use accumulated sick leave and/or vacations for maternity leave and may apply for a Leave of Absence under Section 3 or 5 of Article 3 of this Division. Two (2) consecutive shifts of sick leave may be granted immediately following the birth of an Employee's child and will not affect bonus shift status.

#### **SECTION #6 – Sick Leave Incentive**

The Employer agrees to pay each Employee Sick Leave Incentive Pay as follows:

a) After the twenty-four (24) hour Employee has accumulated 140 hours, the Employer will pay for 1/3 of the unused sick leave accumulated during that fiscal year. Bonus shifts shall be figured in the sick leave incentive calculation. The balance of the unused sick leave will be credited to the Employee's account provided it does not exceed a total of 2,400 hours. A maximum of 2,160 hours will be carried into the next fiscal year. 2,160 hours will be the maximum for purposes of calculating 100% buy out at termination.



BK : 10 13 PG : 5703 10/29/20 13

Hours which exceed 2,160 at termination shall be compensated at 50% (fifty percent). Such payment shall be made on the second payday in July.

- b) After the eight (8) hour Employee has accumulated 960 hours, the Employer will pay for 1/3 of the unused sick leave accumulated during the fiscal year. Bonus shifts shall be figured in the sick leave incentive calculation. The balance of the unused sick leave will be credited to the Employee's account provided it does not exceed a total of 1,560 hours. A maximum of 1,440 hours will be carried into the next fiscal year. 1,440 will be the maximum for calculating 100% buy out at termination. Hours which exceed 1,440 at termination shall be compensated at five percent (5%). Such payment shall be made on the second payday in July.
- c) When the twenty four (24) hour Employee has exceeded 2,160 hours of accumulated sick leave and the forty (40) hour Employee has exceeded 1,440 hours of sick leave, the Employer shall pay for one-half the unused sick leave earned during the fiscal year including bonus shifts.
- d) Upon separation or death, each Employee or their heirs shall be paid for 100% of their accumulated sick leave exceeding the amounts of 960 hours for the twenty four (24) hour Employee or 600 hours for the eight (8) hour Employee.

#### SECTION #7 - Bonus Sick Leave

If an Employee does not make use of their sick leave in the fiscal year, they will accrue four (4) additional sick days or two (2) shifts. When an Employee uses only one sick leave shift/day during the fiscal year, they will accrue one additional "Bonus" sick leave shift/day.

#### SECTION #8 – Random Sick Leave Use

Random use of sick leave exceeding ninety six (96) hours will result in the loss of trade privileges for the remainder of the fiscal year. Any use of sick leave that is accompanied by a doctor's excuse will not be calculated into the ninety six (96) random hours used. After an Employee has used seventy two (72) hours of random sick leave they may be counseled by their chief officer and immediate supervisor. The Battalion Chief will review the reason for the random use of sick leave and determine if it was valid. The Battalion Chief may reduce the Employee's random use hours should they determine the random use was valid.

## ARTICLE 7 UNION BUSINESS

#### **SECTION 1 – Union Time**

The Union shall be granted time off, not to exceed 168 hours per year, to perform their Union functions including attendance at conventions, conferences and seminars without loss of pay or any accrued leave. Such leave shall not exceed one (1) member per shift at any time and shall provide a minimum of twenty four (24) hours notice.

BK: 10 13 PG: 5704 10/29/2013

#### **SECTION 2 – Negotiation Committee Time**

All members of the Negotiating Committee shall be allowed time off for all meetings which shall be mutually set by the Employer and the Union, without loss of pay or accrued leave. The Negotiating Committee shall not exceed five (5) members.

#### SECTION 3 – Grievance Time

All Union members of the Grievance Committee or the Union members seeking a settlement through the Grievance Procedures shall be granted time off for all meetings without loss of pay or any accrued leave. Said meetings shall be set at a time mutually agreed upon with the Employer and the Union.

#### SECTION 4 – Grievance Observation

Any Union official of Local #2441, on their own time, may visit any station at any reasonable time to observe conditions related to a grievance.

### **SECTION 5 – Safety and Health Committee Time**

All Union members of the Occupational Safety and Health Committee shall be allowed time off for all meetings which are mutually set by the Employer and the Union without loss of pay or accrued leave

#### **SECTION 6-Honor Guard**

The Union shall be granted time off, not to exceed one-hundred sixty-eight (168) hours per fiscal year for honor guard activities. These activities include but are not limited to training, refreshers, funerals, promotions, graduations or any other activity related to Honor Guard. Honor Guard activities will be mutually agreed upon between the Union President and the Fire Chief or their designees. Twenty-four hours notice is required to use leave for Honor Guard activities.

The costs of any Honor Guard activities conducted at the request of the District will be borne by the District and will not be deducted from the 168 hours. Costs include coverage for time off, overtime and any travel related expenses where applicable.

# ARTICLE 8 VACATION

#### **SECTION 1 – Vacation Accrual**

Vacation is accrued from July 1<sup>st</sup> to June 30<sup>th</sup> of each year and credited to the Employee's account for use the following year on July 1<sup>st</sup>. No Employee will be eligible for vacation until they have completed one (1) year of service.



#### Twenty four (24) hour shift Employee:

YEARS OF SERVICE	SHIFTS	VACATION PERIODS
More than 1 year	6	3
Less than 5 years		\
More than 5 years	7	4
Less than 8 years		\
More than 8 years	8	4
Less than 10 years		
More than 10 years	9	5
Less than 13 years		
More than 13 years	10	5
Less than 15 years		
More than 15 years	11 /	6
Less than 20 years		/ /
More than 20 years	12	6

#### Eight (8) Hour Employees:

YEARS OF SERVICE	SHIFTS	VACATION PERIODS
More than 1 year	10	N/A
Less than 5 years		
More than 5 years	15	N/A
Less than 15 years	/ /	
More than 15 years	20	N/A

#### **SECTION 2 – Vacation Carry Over**

A maximum of ninety six (96) hours of unused vacation time may be carried over into the next fiscal year. Unused vacation time at the end of each fiscal year exceeding ninety six (96) hours will become void and will be lost.

#### SECTION 3 – First year of employment

During the first year of employment of any Employee, vacation shall accrue but no vacation may be taken during this period.

#### SECTION 4 - Deceased Employee Vacation Pay Out

Any Union Member who dies is entitled to have any accumulated vacation paid out to the deceased's beneficiary in an amount equal to the accrued vacation multiplied by the daily salary or wage exclusive of overtime. For the purposes of this section, the deceased's beneficiary shall be the beneficiary designated by the employee within their trust on file with the District. If no trust is on file the beneficiary shall be the person named as beneficiary for the deceased PERS benefit.

BK : 10 13 PG : 5706 10/29/20

#### **SECTION 5 – Vacation Selection**

Employees shall select vacation periods based on department seniority. Each vacation period shall be selected in order of seniority.

The number of vacation periods allowed will be utilized for "Original" scheduling of vacation. If, after the original vacation selection process is completed an Employee wishes to change their vacation, they may do so as long as the days are open without regard to the number of splits. The splits are for the purpose of selecting original vacation only.

If an Employee picks vacation shifts on the holidays of July 4<sup>th</sup>, Thanksgiving, or Christmas and then elects to change, the next senior Employee shall be given the first choice of vacated days.

#### **SECTION 6 – Vacation Buyout**

Any member who so indicates at the time vacation is scheduled, may elect to be paid for one (1) or two (2) shifts at their regular rate of pay in the first payroll period of July in lieu of taking such vacation. Such payment will be made on the second payday in July.

#### **SECTION 7 – Summer Vacation Restriction**

A maximum of one member per shift shall be on scheduled vacation during the month of July. A maximum of two members per shift may be on scheduled vacation otherwise.

#### **SECTION 8 – Emergency Vacation**

Emergency vacation is available when an unforeseen situation or incident occurs preventing the Employee from being at work. The Employee must contact the Duty Chief to request approval for the use of emergency vacation. Emergency vacation will not be used to circumvent Section 7 of this article. The maximum number allowed off for scheduled vacation will not affect requests for emergency vacation. At the Fire Chief's discretion, accrued vacation days from the coming fiscal year may be used for emergency vacation. Emergency vacation days used in lieu of sick leave cannot be borrowed from the coming fiscal year.

#### **SECTION 9 – Vacation Payout**

When employment terminates, the Employee shall be paid for any unused, accrued vacation time at his/her regular rate of pay. Hours/days of vacation will be prorated to the nearest hour using the Employee's current rate of vacation accrual.

#### SECTION 10 - Injury/Vacation Payout

Should an Employee become injured on the job and unable to return to work to use their scheduled vacation prior to the end of the fiscal year, the unused hours will be paid at straight time or carried over for the use into the next fiscal year. The means of defrayal will be at the discretion of the Fire Chief

# DIVISION V WAGES AND OTHER MONEY ITEMS ARTICLE 1 LONGEVITY

#### SECTION 1 - Longevity Plan

A longevity plan shall apply to all Employees of the bargaining unit of the Fire District.

#### **SECTION 2 – Longevity Pay**

Employees are eligible for longevity pay after completing sixty (60) months of uninterrupted service with the Fire District. Compensation will be paid at ¼ percent of base salary for every year of service (i.e. 12 years=3% of base salary). Computation of longevity will begin with the person's hire date and be paid on the paycheck in the payroll period following their hire date annually or prorated to termination date. Any hire date which is July 1 or after and is in a previous fiscal year payroll period will be paid in the first full payroll period of the next fiscal year.

#### **SECTION 3 – Leave of Absence**

The Employee on approved Leave of Absence shall not lose time accrued for computing longevity pay.

### SECTION 4 - Deceased Employee Longevity Payout

Any Union Member who dies is entitled to have any accumulated longevity paid out to the deceased's beneficiary in an amount equal to the accrued longevity multiplied by the daily salary or wage exclusive of overtime. For the purposes of this section, the deceased's beneficiary shall be the beneficiary designated by the employee in the trust on file with the District. If no trust is on file, the beneficiary shall be the person named as beneficiary for the deceased's PERS benefit.

## ARTICLE 2 MILEAGE ALLOWANCE

Employees required to use their private automobiles (use of motorcycles is prohibited while on duty) for approved Fire District business outside of the District, will be reimbursed at the per mile rate set by the IRS.

### ARTICLE 3 REGULAR OVERTIME AND EMERGENCY OVERTIME

#### SECTION 1 - Overtime Pay

Employees for overtime shall be selected from the existing list and procedures which may be mutually amended form time to time. All overtime will be paid at one and one-half (1 ½) times



the Employee's regular rate of pay at the time such overtime is performed. All overtime pay shall be computed to the nearest quarter (1/4) of an hour. No Employee off duty on sick leave shall be permitted to work regular overtime or Call-Back (emergency) overtime.

#### SECTION 2 - Hold over

When an Employee is held over for more than quarter (¼) of an hour beyond their normally assigned shift, they shall receive compensation for the period they are retained commencing at the conclusion of their normally assigned shift.

#### **SECTION 3 – Emergency Duty**

When Employees are required to report for duty due to an emergency, they shall be compensated from the time they report to the location of such emergency where they were ordered to report until such time as they are relieved from the unscheduled work assignment. In no case shall they be compensated for less than two (2) hours under this section unless a scheduled work assignment occurs during the course of the assignment in which case they will be compensated to the nearest quarter (1/4) hour. All Employees called back for emergencies or held over at the scene of an emergency incident, as in Section 2, shall be compensated at time and one-half (1 1/2) of their rate of pay.

#### **SECTION 4 - Definitions**

Per the Public Employees Retirement Board decision made in September, 1988, following are the definitions of <u>Call-Back Pay</u> and <u>Overtime Pay</u> for the purpose of calculating when retirement benefits will be paid.

Call Back Pay: compensation earned for returning to duty after a member has completed his regular shift, is off duty for any period of time, and is requested to return to duty with less than twelve (12) hours notice.

Overtime Pay: additional compensation earned by a member who is held over on his regular shift or is requested to return to duty at a time that is more than twelve (12) hours after notice is given. This definition may not conflict with the Nevada Revised Statutes 284.190 and Nevada Administrative Code 284.238 and 284.250.

NRS 286.025 states that contributions shall be paid on compensation earned for "returning to duty after one's regular working hours" (call-back pay). Contributions shall not be paid on overtime pay.

BK 1013 PG: 5709 10/29/201

## ARTICLE 4 PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF DUES

#### **SECTION 1 – Union Dues**

The Employer agrees to deduct from the paycheck of each Employee who has signed an authorized payroll deduction form, the amount designated as the Union's dues.

#### **SECTION 2 – Submission of Deductions**

The total amount of deductions shall be submitted to the Secretary/Treasurer of the union within seven (7) days after such deduction.

#### **SECTION 3 – Credit Union Deposit**

The Employer further agrees to deduct from the paycheck of each Employee who has signed an authorized payroll deduction form, the amount designated that will be mailed to the Greater Nevada Credit Union for deposit at the end of each payroll period. The Union agrees the Employer is not liable for such deposits after mailing.

#### **SECTION 4 – Deferred Compensation Deduction**

The Employer agrees to deduct from the paycheck of each Employee who has signed an authorized payroll deduction form, the amount designated as their contribution to the assigned Deferred Compensation Plan utilized by the District and forward such contributions to the Plan immediately upon deduction.

### ARTICLE 5 SPECIAL SKILLS INCENTIVE

### SECTION 1 - Incentive Pay

- a) Employees who maintain Emergency Medical Technician Intermediate (EMT-I) certification, skill competence and meet District standards shall receive an incentive pay of two and one half percent (2.5%) of base salary. Management reserves the right to limit the number of available funded positions.
- b) Employees who are assigned to the EOD team shall receive an incentive pay of five percent (5%) of base salary. Management reserves the right to limit the number of available funded positions.
- c) Employees who maintain Haz-Mat Technician certification, skill competence, and are a recognized member of the Quad County Haz-Mat team, shall receive an incentive pay of two percent (2%) of base salary. Management reserves the right to limit the number of available funded positions.
- d) An engineer or captain who maintains their paramedic certification shall receive an incentive pay of two and one half percent (2.5%) of their base salary.

e) Paramedics designated as Field Training Officers (FTO's) shall receive a three percent (3%) base pay increase only when assigned to a shift and working with an Employee requiring an FTO. Management reserves the right to designate the FTO and to limit the number of FTO's. To receive FTO incentive, the designated FTO must work at least fifty percent (12 hours) of their shift with the Employee requiring an FTO. Management reserves the right to decide which Employees require an FTO.

## ARTICLE 6 TAHOE BASIN LIVING INCENTIVE

To encourage District Employees to live within the Tahoe Basin snow closure boundaries there will be a monthly basin incentive pay. Those Employees residing within the snow closure boundaries of Echo Summit, Luther Pass, Emerald Bay, Spooner Summit, and the top of Kingsbury will receive two and half percent (2.5%) of base pay. This Article does not apply to those Employees residing in the District's Fire Stations. Employees may be required to provide proof of an established residence.

### ARTICLE 7 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

#### **SECTION 1 – Protective Gear**

All protective clothing and protective devices required for members in the performance of their duties shall be furnished by the Employer.

All protective clothing and protective devices shall meet or exceed the NFPA requirements for protective clothing for structural firefighting.

#### **SECTION 2 – Uniform Allowance**

The Employer shall pay each line Employee one and one half percent (1.5%) of base salary for upkeep and maintenance of said uniforms.

#### SECTION 3 - Uniform Change

In the event of a change in uniform, those members affected will be required to comply with such changes within one year.

#### **SECTION 4 – Eyewear Reimbursement**

The Employer shall reimburse Employees up to a maximum of \$100.00 for the repair or replacement of prescription eyeglasses lost or damaged during the performance of their duties, providing such loss is not covered by insurance. Employees must submit immediate notice in writing to their duty chief officer after any loss or damage, and then submit suitable receipts for the reimbursements. The Employer will not be liable for repair or replacement when damage is due to Employee negligence. The Employee shall submit in writing, including names of witnesses, to the Fire Chief or their designee, the circumstances surrounding the accident.



BK: 10 13 PG: 57 1 1 10/29/20 13

## ARTICLE 8 WORKING OUT OF CLASSIFICATION

#### **SECTION 1 – Acting Captain**

Whenever any Firefighter/Paramedic or Engineer who is on an established eligibility list for the position of Fire Captain works as an Acting Captain, they shall receive five percent (5%) in addition to their regular pay at the time such work is performed. Whenever any Firefighter/Paramedic or Engineer who is not on such eligibility list works any one shift as an Acting Captain, they shall receive three percent (3%) in addition to their regular pay at the time such work is performed.

#### **SECTION 2 – Acting Engineer**

Whenever any Firefighter who is on an established eligibility list for the position of Engineer works more than fifty percent (50%) of any one shift (other than by shift trading) as an Acting Engineer, they shall receive five percent (5%) in addition to his regular pay at the time such work is performed. Whenever any Firefighter who is not on such eligibility list and works more than fifty percent (50%) of any one shift as an Acting Engineer, they shall receive three percent (3%) in addition to their regular pay at the time such work is performed.

# ARTICLE 9 EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE

#### **SECTION 1 – Fire Officer Level I**

Employees who submit or provide documentation of completion of an approved Fire Officer Level I series and meet the annual educational requirements shall receive an additional two percent (2%) of their intended monthly base pay. The two percent (2%) compensation in this section may <u>not</u> be added to compensation in Section 2, 3 and 4 of this article. The maximum education compensation paid to Employees in any case is nine percent (9%) of their base pay.

### SECTION 2 - Certificate of Achievement

Employees who have achieved a Certificate of Achievement in Fire Science and meet the annual educational requirements shall receive an additional three percent (3%) of their monthly base pay.

#### SECTION 3 – Associate's Degree

Employees who have achieved an Associate's degree in Fire Science and meet the annual educational requirements shall receive an additional four percent (4%) of their monthly base pay, in addition to Section 2 and Section 4 of this article. For Employees who have achieved an Associate's Degree after July 1, 2013, only degrees conferred by regionally accredited institutions will be recognized.

#### SECTION 4 – Bachelor's Degree

Effective July 1, 2013, Employees who have achieved a Bachelor's Degree from a regionally accredited institution in Fire Administration, Fire Prevention Technology, Public Administration, Business Management, EMS Management, Management or Emergency Management and meet the annual educational requirements shall receive an additional two percent (2%) of their monthly base pay, in addition to Section 2, 3, 4 of this article.

#### **SECTION 5 - Incentive Pay Maintenance**

Annual maintenance of the Fire Science Incentive Pay will include: One minimum three (3) semester/four (4) quarter unit accredited Fire Science course or general education course toward Fire Science or Fire Administration degree, any approved three (3) semester/four (4) quarter unit accredited college course that may further the knowledge or career development of the Employee, or a total of thirty two (32) hours of approved seminars. Seminars may be Fire Service or Management oriented, but must receive prior approval by the Fire Chief for application to the program. Each Employee will be personally responsible for maintaining their educational incentive eligibility obligation at their own expense. Approved classes taken while on duty shall apply toward annual maintenance. The Employer will make every effort to get on duty personnel to classes given within the District. Staffing levels will be a priority as determined by the duty chief when determining which Employee(s) may attend these classes.

#### **SECTION 6 – Proof of Education**

Employees wishing to be compensated in the month they successfully acquire a certificate or degree, must submit a letter of intent prior to the budget year in which they will qualify in. Intent must be filed before May 31<sup>st</sup> of the preceding budget year or compensation will not occur until the following budget year.

#### SECTION 7 - Certificate of Achievement in Fire Service

Nevada recognition for "Certificate of Achievement in Fire Service" for the purpose of qualifying for educational incentives may be granted when the applicant can show successful completion of certified courses equal to the Lake Tahoe Community College "Certificate of Achievement in Fire Science."

#### **SECTION 8 – Incentive Lapses**

When an individual fails to submit certificates for annual educational incentive maintenance (each June 30) such incentive pay shall cease. Individuals who allow their incentives to lapse will be required to make up all annual courses or seminars from the point of lapse before achieving reinstatement of incentive pay.

#### SECTION 9 – District Tuition Assistance

The District agrees to provide tuition to each Employee covered by this agreement for a minimum of one (1) class per fiscal year. The class must be approved by the Fire Chief or designee prior to enrollment.

### ARTICLE 10 SALARY

#### SECTION 1 - Salary schedule conditions

The salary schedule will apply in the following conditions:

- a) Step increases are contingent on successful completion of each year of employment.
- b) The successful completion of the probationary year shall be documented by a letter from the Employee's supervisor recommending removing the Employee from probationary status. Firefighter/Paramedic will be paid at these rates as long as they maintain all state requirements and remain state certified.

A FF/Paramedic who wishes to return to the position of firefighter only, shall make such request in writing to the Fire Chief a minimum of six (6) months prior to a requested change taking place. A request may be approved by the Fire Chief if funds are available to train and qualify a District firefighter as a replacement, or appoint a qualified individual from the District's hiring eligibility list.

#### **SECTION 2 - FLSA**

For the purpose of calculating an Employee's hourly rate of pay, an Employee will be compensated on an intended fifty six (56) hours per week. The Employer agrees to compensate each Employee bi-weekly. The total annual FLSA compensation shall be seventy eight (78) hours (52 weeks X [3x.5 hours] = 78 hours). Payment is to be made in conjunction with the bi-weekly payroll.

#### SECTION 3 – Work Cycles

The declared work cycle (or period) for the Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District for 7K exempt firefighters will be nine (9) days.

Payday for all personnel will be every other Friday. The close of the payroll period will be at 0800 hours on the Monday preceding payday.

#### **SECTION 4 – Step Raise**

Upon recommendation of the Fire Chief, while maintaining a satisfactory performance evaluation, an Employee shall be eligible for a step raise upon the successful completion of probation and one (1) year following a previous step raise or promotion until top step is reached.

BK: 10 13 PG: 57 14 10/29/20 13

Effective July 1, 2014, Step 1 will be removed from the Firefighter and Firefighter/Paramedic Wage Scales.

#### **SECTION 5 - Pay Adjustments**

All pay adjustments shall begin on the first day of the next payroll period.

#### **SECTION 6 – Job Descriptions**

The Employer shall maintain job descriptions. Any Employee may, on request, look through these descriptions. The Employer will provide each Employee with their job description that will be signed by the Employee and maintained in their personnel file.

#### **SECTION 7 – Paycheck Distribution**

Employee paychecks will be placed in sealed envelopes for all Employees.

#### **SECTION 8 - Renegotiation of Wages**

Whenever Consolidated Tax (CTX) revenues fail to meet State of Nevada estimates, wages will be renegotiated.

#### **SECTION 9-Salary Increase**

Effective July 1, 2013, Employee salaries shall increase 2.375%. As required by NRS, see Div. 2, Article 5, this salary increase will be decreased by 0.375% due to the Employee's PERS contribution rate increase for a net salary increase of two percent (2%).

### **APPENDIX**

# APPENDIX A WAGE SCALE\*

	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8
Firefighter	\$41,327	\$43,275	\$45,315	\$47,449	\$49,829	\$51,826	\$54,364	\$56,848
		-						
FF/Paramedic	\$47,142	\$49,364	\$51,691	\$54,126	\$56,848	\$59,200	\$61,790	\$64,235
Engineer				\$54,126	\$56,848	\$59,200	\$61,790	\$64,235
								1
Captain				\$61,790	\$64,235	\$66,640	\$69,190	\$71,647
	*Refl	ects incre	ase per I					



Ø832786 Page: 39 of 46

BK: 1013 PG: 5716 10/29/2013

#### Memorandum of Understanding

#### February 15, 2013

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) represents an understanding between the Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District (TDFPD) and the IAFF Union in regards to the creation of a temporary Training Officer assignment. The Training Officer assignment will be considered a fire suppression assignment. This assignment shall terminate on March 19, 2015 or the end of the performance period of the SAFER grant, unless terminated earlier as set forth below in section III. However, TDFPD retains the management right to terminate at any time this temporary assignment at their discretion.

- I. The appointment for the assignment shall be at the discretion of TDFPD and will be undertaken through an in-house recruitment. The temporary Training Officer assignment is voluntary, and this MOU does not limit the ability of the Fire District to assign duties, include training related tasks to other Employees currently assigned to shift work or to Employees who are assigned to transitional duty.
- II. The provisions of this MOU shall apply only to the Training Officer who has been selected by the Fire District. This MOU shall not apply to other Employees other than the selected Training Officer, including those detailed as a Recruit Training Officer at the recruit academy.
- III. If TDFPD determines that the Training Officer is not successfully meeting the expectations of TDFPD, then they may return that Employee to shift assignment and solicit other Employees to fill this temporary assignment. If the Training Officer determines that they are unable to fulfill the requirements of the assignment, the Training Officer will return to a shift assignment at their previous rank. If the return to a shift assignment is initiated by the Employee, the Employee shall give the TDFPD fourteen (14) days notice. A Training Officer who returns to a shift assignment shall not lose accrued seniority. TDFPD is under no obligation to maintain this temporary assignment.
- IV. The assignment of Training Officer will be a forty (40) hour week assignment. The Employee's base fifty six (56) hour salary, and any incentives and/or benefits afforded by the Collective Bargaining Agreement (AGREEMENT), will be converted to a forty (40) hour rate. The Training Officer will not receive Holiday pay, but will receive officially recognized Holidays (as listed in Article 2, Section 1 of the AGREEMENT) off with pay. Hours worked as a Training Officer in excess of forty (40) during a workweek will be paid as overtime at the forty (40) hour wage, or they may be accrued as credited time. The Employee will designate at the time of accrual which form of compensation is requested. Credited time will accrue at the rate one and half (1.5) per hour worked beyond forty (40). Credited time cannot be converted to overtime pay once it has been recorded as credited time. The accrual of overtime or credited time shall be approved by their immediate supervisor. During recruit academies, the Training Officer will work Monday-Friday 0800-1700 hrs. Alternate schedules may be available, but are subject to the Fire Chief's approval. The selected Employee



BK: 10 13 PG: 57 17 10/29/20 13

- receiving this temporary assignment will receive a twelve percent (12%) increase of base pay for any hours worked in this assignment.
- V. The Training Officer will have the ability to work Overtime (OT) line shifts on non-scheduled Training Officer work days. If the Employee chooses to work OT line shifts during their appointment as Training Officer, the Employee will be paid overtime based upon their fifty six (56) hour hourly wage for the entirety of the OT shift. All personal incentives afforded by AGREEMENT prior to this appointment remain in place and shall be calculated accordingly.
- VI. The Training Officer will not give up any previously awarded benefits defined within the current AGREEMENT. This includes, but is not limited to, accrual of sick and vacation time at their previous rate. Any benefit that has a converted rate due to the forty (40) hour assignment will be converted back when Employee returns to a fifty six (56) hour assignment. Any negotiated changes to the AGREEMENT will apply to this Employee upon the new AGREEMENT taking effect. TDFPD will provide the Training Officer a standard cell phone stipend during the duration of this assignment.
- VII. If this MOU is found to be in conflict with the existing AGREEMENT, then the AGREEMENT shall govern and TDFPD may automatically terminate this temporary assignment.

	Nathan J Johnson		Date
	Negotiation Chairperson	\ \	
/ /	Ben Sharit		Date
/	Fire Chief		

### Return to Work Following Extended Absence

SUBJECT:

Performance Standards Evaluation

**PURPOSE:** 

To establish a Performance Standards Evaluation process for assessing fitness for duty of personnel under certain specified circumstances or upon release to return to work following injury/illness or extended absence.

**POLICY:** 

All suppression personnel, including those with "Duty Officer" responsibilities, will be required to successfully complete a Performance Standards Evaluation before returning to work from personal injury, health condition, or any other absence from work greater than sixty consecutive calendar (60) days, whether work-related or not.

#### **AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY:**

It is the responsibility of each individual, their immediate supervisor, and the Safety Officer to follow all applicable procedures set forth in this policy. Every employee is ultimately responsible to be fit for duty. The Safety Officer will be responsible for managing compliance measures contained within this policy.

#### PROCEDURE:

#### I. Notification

- A. The employee must keep the Safety Officer and their shift commander (shift B.C.) informed as to his/her projected return to duty date.
- B. The employee will schedule a Performance Standards Evaluation for their next regularly scheduled duty date at 0800 Hours. If the absence is injury/illness related, the Performance Standards Evaluation may only occur after the employee has been released to full duty without restrictions by the district's physician. If the employee postpones the Performance Standards Evaluation, it will be the responsibility of the employee to determine their own shift coverage (i.e. sick leave, trades, vacation etc.) The Safety Officer will contact the appropriate Duty Chief with the scheduled evaluation date. The evaluators will consist of the Safety Officer, the duty chief and/or and the company officer (unless employee is the company officer).
- C. The employee will be considered on "transitional duty" until the Performance Standards Evaluation is successfully completed. Upon completion, the employee may assume his/her assigned position. If the employee is unable to successfully complete the evaluation, he/she will remain on transitional duty (40 hour wk., Monday-Friday 0800-1700). The transitional duty time will be spent training on the district performance standards until the Performance Standards Evaluation is successfully completed.

#### Examples:

 Employee is off work for greater than sixty days on FMLA leave to care for a sick relative. Employee notifies their shift B.C. and Safety Officer of their next scheduled work shift. Safety Officer schedules Performance Standards Evaluation for that day @ 0800 hrs. If the evaluation completed by employee successfully, employee returns to work assignment. If the employee fails the evaluation, employee will be considered on transitional duty. Transitional duty will consist of training on deficiencies with peer fitness counselor for physical fitness deficiencies and company officer for training deficiencies.

- 2. Employee is off work for greater than sixty days with a non-work related injury. Employee notifies their shift B.C. and Safety Officer of their next scheduled work shift. Prior to this date, employee's treating physician must complete TDFPD F-68 "Return to Work" Form with no restrictions. Employee must then schedule an appointment with the Fire District's Occupational Medicine Physician for a "Fit For Duty" Evaluation.
  - After successful completion of the "Fit for Duty" Evaluation, the Safety Officer will schedule the Performance Standards Evaluation as soon as possible prior to or on the employee's next scheduled work day. If the employee successfully completes the Performance Standards Evaluation, he/she will return to work assignment. If the employee fails the evaluation, employee will be considered on transitional duty. Transitional duty will consist of training on deficiencies with peer fitness counselor for physical fitness deficiencies and company officer for training deficiencies.
- 3. Employee is off work greater than sixty consecutive days with a work related injury. Employee notifies their shift B.C. and Safety Officer of their expected date of return to full duty. Prior to this date, employee's treating physician completes TDFPD F-68 "Return to Work" Form with no restrictions and schedules appointment with the Fire District's Occupational Medicine Physician for a "Fit For Duty" Evaluation.
  - After successful completion of the "Fit for Duty" Evaluation, the Safety Officer will schedule the Performance Standards Evaluation as soon as possible prior to or on the employee's next scheduled work day. If the employee successfully completes the Performance Standards Evaluation, he/she will return to work assignment. If the employee fails the evaluation, employee will be considered on transitional duty. Transitional duty will consist of training on deficiencies with peer fitness counselor for physical fitness deficiencies and company officer for training deficiencies.
- 4. Employee is off duty less than sixty days with a work related injury. Employee notifies their shift B.C. and Safety Officer of their next scheduled work shift. Prior to this date, employee's treating physician must complete TDFPD F-68 "Return to Work" Form with no restrictions. Employee must then schedule an appointment with the Fire District's Occupational Medicine Physician for a "Fit For Duty" Evaluation. After release by Fire District's Occupational Medicine Physician to full duty without restrictions, employee reports for duty on next scheduled work day.

BK : 10 13 PG 5720 10/29/20 13

II. The Performance Standards Evaluation Shall consist of the District's "Individual and Company Performance Standards".

### Performance Standards Evaluation Criteria

Individual Performance Standard # 1: Don SCBA properly, in time specified.

Engine Co. Performance Standard #1: Carry PPV Fan from engine to designated point of entry in full PPE/SCBA (50 feet not on supplied air)

Engine Co. Performance Standard #2: Extend 2.5" pre-connected working line with gated "y" to designated point of entry (200 feet/no SCBA)

Engine Co. Performance Standard #2: Deliver two (2) 1.75" hose packs to designated point of entry, attach and deploy one (1) pack, don SCBA (on supplied air) and prepare to enter IDLH atmosphere with charged hose line.

Individual Performance Standard #1 (rescue): Tie main rescue knots

#### Notes:

The above listed criteria may change as company and individual performance standards are added, updated or modified.

The employee may, and is encouraged to, enlist the assistance of a Peer Fitness Trainer(s) and/or company officer for specific support to meet the Individual and Company Performance Standards.

This language will be adopted as a "Memorandum of Understanding" between the Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District and the Tahoe Douglas Firefighters Association Local #2441 until the Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District Board of Trustees approve as policy.

Signed

Date 07-11

Signed A

Date 7/7/2011

President Local 2441

**TDFPD Fire Chief** 

Overtime Guidelines Revised August 30, 2011 Effective September 15, 2011

Approved, Fire Chief

Approved, Chairperson
Negotiations

Date
9-8-//

The following procedures will be followed for filling overtime needs.

Scheduled overtime: Scheduled overtime is defined as notification more than forty eight hours before the beginning of the shift to be filled. The overtime will be filled "rank for rank", all persons holding the rank required and those on the acting list for that rank will be contacted first. Qualified Engineers Paramedics will be included in Paramedic rank for overtime purposes. If none of those persons accept the overtime, then it will be offered to the remainder of qualified line personnel. Persons to be called will be contacted in order of accumulated overtime hours, lowest to highest number of hours. The contact can be made in person, by phone, or by pager. If contacted in person or by phone, the employee will have two (2) hours to respond to the request. If no response, hours will be added if applicable and the next person in line contacted. Unanswered pages will be deemed "no contact" and after two (2) hours the person will be passed over without hours added and the next person contacted.

Immediate need overtime: Immediate need overtime is defined as notification less than forty eight (48) hours from the time of need. Immediate need overtime will also be filled rank for rank. The paging system will be used to notify the membership of immediate need overtime. The page will include the date, time, station, and rank required to satisfy the need. The page will be repeated three times in twenty minutes. After twenty minutes, all qualified employees who contacted the person filling overtime will be evaluated to ascertain the one with the lowest hours, lowest hours gets the shift. Another page will be sent to announce the successful employee. The successful employee will call to confirm with the overtime scheduler.

Emergency callback overtime: Emergency callback overtime is defined as notification less than twelve (12) hours before the beginning of the need. Emergency callback overtime will be filled rank for rank. When possible, emergency callback overtime will be offered first to the off-going crews first by calling all the stations to advise of the pending need. If no one in the rank accepts the overtime it will be offered to the balance of the on-duty crews if they are qualified, if again no one accepts the overtime, then immediate need procedures will be followed.

New Employees: New employees will not be eligible for scheduled overtime for the first six months of employment without the duty chief's approval.

Short list: The "Short List" will no longer be used.

Hours added: A running total of all overtime hours accepted or declined will be kept for each employee. Hours added for declining overtime will not be removed for employee initiated schedule changes that occur after the fact. Overtime hours will be rounded to the nearest whole hour for purposes of the running total.

### Exceptions for adding hours:

- 1. The overtime is 10 hours or less, unless called as scheduled overtime and order to fill hours was received 10 days prior to need. Hours accepted as scheduled overtime (10 hours or less) will not be added to total. If person declines to work and later accepts hours, before being filled, the hours added for declining will be deducted from total.
- 2. The employee is on sick leave, off work due to injury, or unable to work overtime because of department business (training, meetings etc.).
- 3. The employee is on scheduled vacation that includes the overtime. Shift trades that extend a vacation period or a four day are also considered vacation.
- 4. The employee is already on duty, overtime or shift trade.
- 5. The employee has already had hours added for the same day.
- 6. Declining an overtime that would result in the employee being on duty more than 58 or less continuous hours.

#### Additional guidelines:

- 1. Once hours are added for accepting overtime, they will not be removed unless: The employee is required to attend training or other District business, or the employee is injured on duty.
- 2. Employees are considered on duty for their regular shift even if off on trade.
- 3. Employees may work overtime during their vacation. It is the employee's responsibility to contact the overtime scheduler and advise that they are available.
- 4. An employee may decline overtime for a future period of time. If they are eligible for overtime during this period, hours will be added as if the employee had declined hours.
- Overtime hours will be totaled after each overtime hour is scheduled. Overtime hours will be audited against payroll records.



- 6. When an employee returns to work after more than thirty (30) days off due to: sick, extended training, injured on duty, or unpaid leave, their accumulated total will be adjusted to one hour less than the employee with the lowest hours in the same rank or their current total, whichever is higher.
- New employees that have successfully completed six months of employment will be added to the overtime list at one hour less than the employee with the lowest total in their rank.
- If an employee is placed off duty for disciplinary reasons, any overtime hours scheduled during the period of discipline will remain on the total.

Holidays: Hours will not be added for accepting or declining hours on: Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Eve, Christmas, New Year's Eve, and July Fourth the first time through the list. If the shift(s) remain unfilled, the list will be gone through again and hours will be added for declining overtime. Hours will still not be added for accepting overtime on these days.

### Zeroing Hours:

A new overtime list will be started on July 1, 0800, of every year. Zero hours will be given to the employee with the least hours from previous list. One hour will be given to the next lowest, 2 hours to the next, and so on, until the new list is complete. New sheets will be started in ledger for purpose of accurate tracking. In the audit of the previous list, if a discrepancy is found, only hours applying to employee's placement will be added or subtracted to new list. All other employees will be adjusted in the same manner from results.